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In the Matter of: 

Diamond Hard Chrome Co. Inc. 
Cleveland, Ohio 

Resnondent 

UMTED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGIONS 

EPA-5-14-113(a)-OI{-02 

ProceedingUnder Section 113(a)(3) of the 
Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7413(a)(3) 

Administrative Consent Order 

The Director of the Air and Radiation Division, U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency (EPA), Region 5, is issuing this Orderto Diamond Hard Chrome tinder Section 

1.13(a)(3) of the Clean Air Act (CAA), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)(3). 

Statutory and Regulatory Background 

Section 112(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(b), provides a list of hazardous air 

pollutants developed by Congress and modified in accordance with the CAA. 

Section 1 12(c)(1) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(c)(1), requires the Administrator 

publish, and from time to time revise, if appropriate, a list of source categories and subcategories 

of major sources and area sources f the air pollutants listed pursuant to Section 112(b). 

Section 112(c)(2) of the AA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(c)2), requires the Administrator 

establish emissions standards in accordance with Section 112(d) of the CAA for the categories 

and subcategories the Administrator lists, 

S. Section 112(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 74 12(d), requires the Administrator 

promulgate regulations establishing emission standards for each category or subcategory of 

major sources and area souTrces of hazardous air pollutants listed for regi1ation. 



Section 112(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(d), also identifies the minimum 

requirements under which the Administrator is to develop and promulgate such regulations. 

The Administrator published an initial list of categories and subcategories of 

major sources and area sources in accordance with Section 112 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. 7412, on 

July 16, 1992. 57 Fed. Reg. 31576-31592. 

The initial list of categories and subcategories includes hard chromium 

electroplating. 57 Fed. Reg. 31592. 

The Administrator published the General Provisions of 40 C.F.R. Part 63 on 

December 29, 1992, as amended. 59 Fed. Reg. 61992 (codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart A). 

- 10. The Administrator promulgated, iii accoidance with the requirements of Section 

112 of the CAA, the National Enussion Standards for Chromium Emissions front Hard 

Decorative Chromium Electroplating and Chromium Anodizing Tanks (40 C.F.R. Pail 63, 

Subpart N) on January 25, 1995, as amended. 60 Fed. Reg. 4963. 

40 C.F.R. § 63.1 (a)(2) of the General Provisions slates this part contains national 

emission standards for hazardous air pollutants (NESI-IAP) established pursuant to section 112 of 

the cAA. These standards regulate specific categories of stationary sources that emit (or have 

the potential to emit) one or more hazardous air pollutantslisted in this part pursuant to section 

112(b) of the AA. 

The definition section of the General Provisions define, among other things, area 

source as "any stationary source of hazardous air pollutants that is not a major source as defined 

in this part3'. 

The General Provisions of 40 C,F,R. Part 63 require owners and operators of 

stationary sources subject to a NESHAP listed in 40 C.F.R. Part 63 to, among other things: 
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Conduct initial peiformance testing within 180 days of the compliance 

date of an applicable NESHAP. 40 C.F.R. § 63.7(a)(2). 

Performance testing must be conducted under conditions the 

Administrator specifies to the owner or operator based on representative 

performance (i.e. performance based oii normal operating conditions) of 

the affected source. 40 C.F.R. § 63.7(e)(l). 

Submit ah initial notification no later than 120 calendar days after the 

effective date of the relevant standard. 40 C.F.R, § 63.9(b)2). 

Submit periodic notifications of compliance status reports. 

40 C.F.R. § 63.9(h). 

40 C.F.R. § 63.340(a) states the affccted source to which the provisions of this 

subpart apply is each chromium electroplating or chromium anodizing tank at facilities 

performing hard chromium electroplating, decorative chromium electroplating, or chromium 

anodizing, 

40 C.F.R. § 63.340(b) states owners or operators of affected sources subject to the 

provisions of this subpart must also comply with the requirements of subpart A of this part (i.e. 

the General Provisions to 40 C.F.R. Part 63). 

40 C.P.R. Part 63, Subpart N imposes the following requirements, among others, 

on affected sources subject to this regulation. 

a Standards for open swface hard chroin rum electroplating tanks: - 

Requires, during tank operation, each owner or operator shall control 

chroiniwn emissions discharged to the atmosphere from each affected 

source by not allowing the concentration of total chromiwn in the exhaust 
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gas stream discharged to the atmosphere to exceed 0.011' miiligramsof 

total èhromium per dry standard cubic meter (rng/dscin) of ventilation air. 

: 40 C.F.R. § 63.342(e)(l)(i). 

Operation and maintenance practices: Requires all owners or operators 

subject to this standard to, at all times, including periods of startup, 

shutdown, and nialftinction, operate and maintain any affected source, 

including associated air pollution control devices and monitoring 

equipment, in a maimer consistent with good air pollution control 

practices. 40 CF.R. § 63.342(0(1)0). 

C'ompliance dates: Requires the owner or operator of an existing affected 

source to comply with the applicable emission limit at40 C.F.R. § 63.342 

no later than September 19, 2014. 

Methods to demonstrate initial compliance: Requires an owner or 

operator of an affected source to conduct an initial performance test as 

required under 40 C.F.R. § 63.7. 40 C.F.R. § 63.343(b)(l). 

Monitoring to demonstrate continuous compliance: Requires the owner or 

operator of an affected source complying with applicable emission limits 

througji the use of a composite mesh pad system to establish a site-specific 

operatingparanieter for pressure drop across the system. This parameter 

must be detennined during the initial performance testing and is set based 

on the value that corresponds to compliance with the applicable emission 

'The residual ,-isk rule promulgated September 19, 2012 (77 Fed. Reg. 5824) revised this emission limit downward, 
from 0.015 mg/dscnt to 0.0.11 mg/dscm for all open surface hard chromium electroplating tanks that are existing 
affected facilities and are located at large hard chromium electroplating facilities. The more stringent 0.011 
mg/dscm limit becomes effective September19, 2014. 
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limitation. 40 C.F.R. § 63.343c)(1)(i). 

C Monitoring to demonstrate continuous compliance: Requires the owuler or 

operator to monitor and record the pressure drop across the composite 

mesh-pad system once each day that arty affected source is operating. The 

composite mesh-pad system must be operated within ±2 inches of water 

column of the pressure drop value established during the initial 

performance test or within the range of coinphant values for pressure drop 

established during multiple performance tests. 

40 C.F.R. § 63.343(c)(I)(ll). 

Packed-bed icrub her/composite mesh-pad system: Requires the owner or 

operator of an affected source that uses a packed-bed scrubber in 

conjunction with a composite mesh-pad system to meet the monitoring 

requirements for composite mesh-pad systems. 40 C.F.R. § 63.343c)(3). 

Petjorinance test requirements: Requires performance testing be 

conducted using the test methods and procedures in this section and 

40 C.F.R. § 63.7. 40 C.F.R. § 63.344(a). 

Recordkeeping requirements: Requires the owner or operator of an 

affected source to thaintain records for such source including aLl 

monitoring data required by 40 C.F.R. § 63.343(e) that are used to 

demonstrate compliance with the applicable standard including the date 

and time the data are collected. 40 C.F.R. § 63.346(b). - 

j. Reporting requirements: Slates the reporting requirments of this section 

apply to the owner or operator of an affected source when such source 



becomes subject to the provisions of this subpart. 40 C.F.R. § 63.347(b). 

k. Reporlinj requirements: Requires the owner or operator of each affected 

source that has an initial startup before January 25, 1995 to notitS' the 

Administrator in writing that the source is subject to this subpart no later 

than iSO caendar days after January 25, 1995. 40 C.RR. § 63.347(c)(j). 

Reporting requirements: Requires a notification of compliance status each 

time an affected source becomes subject to the requirements of tins 

subpart. This information includes, among other things, the applicable 

emission limitation and the methods used to determine compliance with 

this limitation, each monitored parameter for which a compliance value is 

to be established under 40 C.F.R. § 63.343(c) and the specific operating 

parameter value, or range of values, that corresponds to compliance with 

the applicable emission limit, and the methods that will be used to 

determine continuous compliance, including a description of monitoring 

and reporting requirements. 40 C.F.R. § 63.347(e)(1-3), 

in. Reporting requirements: Requires the owner or operator of each affected 

source to report to the Administrator the results of any performance lest 

conducted in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 63.7 and § 63.343(b). The 

reports of the performance test results must be submitled as part of the 

notification of compliance status report no later than 90 days following 

completion of the performance test. 40 C.F.R. § 63.347(00-2). 



Section 112(i)(3)(A) of the CAA states that after the effective date of any 

emissions standard, limitation or regulation promulgated under this section and applicable to a 

source, no person may operate such source in violation of such standard, limitation or iegulation 

except, in the case of an existing source, the Administrator shall establish a compliance date or 

dates for each category or subcategory of existing sources, which shall provide for compliance as 

expeditiously as pfacticablc, but in no event later than 3 years after the effective date of such 

standard, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(i)(3)(A). 

Section 1 13(a)(3) of the CAA states that whenever, on the basis of any 

inonnation available to the Administrator of EPA, the Administrator finds that any person has 

violated or is in violation of any requirement br prohibition of this Subchapter, the Administrator 

may issue an order requiring such person to comply with such requirement or prohibition. This 

authority has been delegated to the Director of the Air and Radation Division. EPA Delegation 

7-6-A, 8/9194; Region S Delegation 7-6-A, 2/4/bO. 

Findings 

Respondent owns and operates a hard chromium electroplating facility at 6110 

Grand Avenue in Cleveland, Ohio (Facility). 

The Facility is a tationary source as defined in the CAA and 40 C.F.R. § 63.2: 

The facility includes seven open top hard chromium electroplating tanks and a 

portable tank which are affected sources as defined at 40 C.F.R. § 63.340(a). 

The maximum cumulative potential rectifier capacity of the affected sources is 

greater than 60 million mpere-hours per year. 

The facility is a large, hard chromium electroplating facility as defined at 

40 C.F.R. § 63 .341(a). 
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The affected sources are designated Tank 1, Tank 2, Tank 3, Tank 4, Tank 5, 

Tank 6, Tank 7, and a portable hard chronilum electroplating tank with porous pots @ortable 

tank) associated with plating a particular product called "Miniiig Screens". 

The affected sources use coniposte mesh-pad systems and packed scrubbers to 

control chromium emissions. 

Tanks 1-3, after the èomposite mesh-pad system, vent into a common plenum 

followed by a single, dedicated packed scrubber labeled Scrubber #1. 

Tanks 4-6, after the composite mesh-pad system, vent into a common plenum 

followed by a single, dcicated packed scrubber labeled Scrubber #2. 

Tank 7, after the four composite mesh-pad systems, vents into a dedicated stack 

[Stack #3, referred to in the performance testing as "Scrubber #3 outlet"]. Emissions from the 

portable tank, when used, are vented through a 5 inch pipe to either the Tank 6 or Tank 7 

ventilation system to control emissions. 

Performance testing for hexavalent chromium and total chromium enussions from 

the #1, #2, and #3 scrubber outlets was conducted at the Facility May 9-11, 2012. 

The performance test report for the May, 2012 test showed the following reuIts: 

Emissions from Scrubbdr #1 exceeded 0.015 mg/dscm for both hexavalent 

- chronnutu and total chromium emissions. 

Emissions from Scrubber#2 exceeded 0.015 nigldscni for total chronuum 

emissions. . - 

Emissions from Scrubber #3 exceeded 0.0 15 mg/dscrn for total chromium 

emissions. 
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information: 

Tank 1 (5,500 amperes) 

Tank 2 (15,000 amperes) 

e. Tank 3 (5,500 amperes) 

Tank 4 (5,500 amperes) 

Tank 5(5,500 amperes) 

Tank 6 (10,000 amperes) 

Tank 7 (10,500 amperes) 

32. Performance testing for hexavalent chromium and total chromium emissions from 

the Ill scrubber outlet was conducted at the Facility August .14-15, 2012. 

33. The perfonnance test report for the August, 2012 test showed emissions from 

Scrnbbcr /tl were below 0.015 m g/dscm for both hexavalent chromium and total chromium 

(0.0Q982 mg/thom for hexavalent chromium and 0.01084 mg/dscm for total chromium). 

34. The performance test report for the August, 2012 test included the following 

process information: 

Tank 1 (5,500 amperes) 

Tank 2(14,000 to 15,000 amperns) 

Tank 3 (5,400 to 5,800 amperes) 

35. Respondent submitted a letter on April 7, 2011, in response to a 114 information 

request, which provided information on the maximum electrical capacity of each tank in Amp- 

hours. The letter includes a description of how the maximum electrical capacity was calculated 

totaL rectifier capacity (amperes) multiplied by 8,400 horns/year, multiplied by 0.7). 

9. 

31. The performance test report for the May, 2012 test includes the following process 



36, The current maximum amperages for each chromium electroplating tank at 

Diamond Hard Chrome are: 

a. Tank 1(10,000 amperes) 

lx Tank 2(15,000 amperes). 

Tank 3 (7,500 amperes) 

Tank 4 (7,500 amperes) 

Tank 5 (7,500 amperes) 

Tank 6(15,000 amperes) 

Tank 7: (2x 10,000 amperes) 

Portable Tank: (800 amperes) 

Respondent submitted an initial nolification report to EPA on April 7, 2011. 

Respondent submitted an annual compliance report to EPA on April 7, 2011. 

Respondent monitors pressure drop across its packed bed scrubbers. 

Respondent maintains records of pressure drop across its packcd bed serubbers. 

Respondent violated thc National Emission Standards for Chromium Emissions 

from Hard and Decorative Chromium Electroplating and Chmmium Anodizing Tanks (40 C.F .R. 

Part 63, Subpart N) as follows: 

Respondent failed to conduct initial performance testing under 

representative operating conditions (Le., maximum permitted design 

rates), to demonstrate compliance as required at 40 C.F.R. § 63.7 

and 63.344(a). 

Respondent failed to demonstrate compliance with the 0.015 mg/dscin 

emission limit for open surface hard chromiwn electroplating tanks as 

to 



required at 40 C.F.R. § 63.342(c)(1). 

Respondent failed to monitor pressure drop across the system (te., across 

the mesh pads and scrubbers) as required at 40 C.F.R. § 63.343(e)(3). 

Respondent failed to maintain records of pressure drop across the system 

as required at 4o C.F.R. § 63.346(b)(8). 

Respondent failed to submit an initial notification report within 180 days 

after January 25, 1995 as required at 40.C.F.R. § 63.347(c)(.1). 

EPA issued a Finding of Violation POV) to Respondent on June 10, 2Q11. 

Representatives of Diamond Hard Chrome and EPA met on August 2, 2011 to 

discuss, the Finding of Violation issued June 10, 2011. 

Compliance Program 

Diamond Hard Chrome must achieve, demonstrate, and maintain continuous 

compliance with the National Emission Standards for Chromium Emissions from Hard and 

Decorative Chromium Electroplating and Clirornhun Anodizing Tanks (40 CY.R. Part 63, 

Subpart N). 

Emission Limitations 

Diamond Hard Chrome must aehicve, demonstrate, and maintain continuous 

compliance with the 0.011 mg/dscm emission limit for large, hard chromium electroplating 

facilities in 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart N no later than September 19, 2014. 

Compliance with the limit in Paragraph 45 must be achieved at Scrubber #1 

outlet, Scrubber #2 outlet, and 113 stack servicing Diamond Hard Chrome's open top hard 

chromium electroplating tanks. 
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47. Diamond Hard Chrome must continuously maintain and operate the existing 

control systems on all seven of Diamond Hard Chrome's open top hard chromium electroplating 

tanks as well as the upgrades it made to existing control equipment on Tanks 6 and 7 to ensure 

emissions Qf total chronuiuni are reduced and maintained below the 0.011 mg/dscm emission 

limit. Control equipment and control equipment upgrades which must be continuously 

maintained and operated include: 

The existing mesh pad mist eliminators on Tanks 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5. 

The existing packed bed scrubbers on Stacks 1 and 2. 

The redesigned and rebuilt mesh pad mist eliminator with the new tn- 

mesh pads on Tank 6 

The second redesigned and rebuilt mesh pad mist eliminator with the new 

fri-mesh pads added to Tank 6. 

The two redesigned and rebuilt mesh pad mist eliminators with the new 

fri-mesh pads on Tank 7 (first floor). 

The two existing mesh pad mist eliminators on Tank 7 (second floor). 

Nothing in this Paragraph prohibits Diamond Hard Chrome from implementing additional 

upgrades to existing or upgraded mesh pad ihist eliminators or packed bed scrubbers to fhrthcr 

reduce total chromium emissions below the 0.011 mg/dscm emission limit. 

rf performance testing conducted in accordance with Paragraph 49 shows emissions of 

total chromium in excess of the 0.011 rng/dscm emission limit, Diamond Hard Chrome must 

implement upgrades (or additional upgrades) to one or more of its control systems associated 

with the violating tank(s) such thatthe violating tank(s) achieve and maintain continuous 

compliance with the 0.011 ing/dscnu emission limit. Diamond Hard Chronic must, subsequent to 
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implementation of the control system. upgrades required in the above sentence, retest the affected - 

lank(s) in: accordance with Paragraph 49 to demonstrate compliance with the 0.011 mg/dscin 

limit 

48. Diamond Hard Chrome, in addition to the control upgrades it has implemented, 

elects to take federally enforceable operational limitations which physicaLly limit the maximum 

cumulative potential rectifier capacity of each lank as follows: 

Tank 1: 6,000 amp-hours (52,560,000 amp-hrstl.2-month rolling period) 

Tank 2: 9,000 amp-hours (78,840,000 amp-hrs/12-month rolling period) 

Tank 3: 6,500 amp-hours (56,940,000 anip-hrs/12-inonth roiling period) 

Tank 4: 4,500 amp-hours (39,420,000 amp-hrs/12-inonth rolling period) 

TankS: 4,000 amp-hours (35,040,000 amp-hrs/12-month rolling period) 

Tank 6: 1.0,500 amp-hours (91,940,000 aaip-hrs/1 2-month rolling period) 

Tank 7:9,500 amp-hours (83,220,000 amp-hrs/12-month roiling period) 

The operational limitations will be achieved by using limiters, non-resettable ampere-hour 

meters, or other means which physically limit the total ampere-hour usage. Diamond Hard 

Chrome must maintain monthly records of actual ampere-hour usage for each 12-month 

rolling period following September 19, 2014. 

Demonstration of Compliance: 

49. Diamond Hard Chrome must demonstrate initial compliance with the applicable 

emission limit by conducting performance testing for total chromium emissions at each df 

the three scrubber outlets (Scrubber 1, Scrubber 2, and Stack #3). Performance testing must 

be completed no later than 180 days after September 19,2014. At least one of the testing 

scenarios must include plating activities associated with the portable tank with the portable tank 
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emissions vented to one of the ventilation and control systems being tested. Performance testing 

conducted no more than one month prior to the effective date of this Order may be nsed as the 

"initial compliance test" for purposes of testing under this Order so long as it meets the 

requirements of SubpartN and this Order. 

50. Diamond Hard Chrome roUst submit a performance testing protocol for the testing 

required by Paragraph 49 to EPA for review and approval no later than 60 days after the 

effective date of this Order. The protocol for performance testing conducted no more than one 

month prior to the effective date of this Order may be submitted withrn the 60-day time frame if 

the associated testing was conducted and intended to be used as the "initial compliance test". 

The stack testing protocol niustinclude, at a minimum, the following information: 

The proposed testing dates. 

The EPA reference method(s) to be used during the test. 

The number and duration of runs to be conducted for each test. 

il. A schematic drawing of the test port locations, including the distances to 

the nearest upstream and dovmstream disturbances. (If any of the test port 

locations do not meet any of the disturbance distance requirements in 

40 C.F.R. Part 60, Appendix A, Reference Method 1, Section 11.1, this 

description must include a discussion of the means in which Diamond 

Hard Chrome will either ensure or verify laminar flow at the testing - 

location). 

a. A schematic drawing of the velocity traverses to be conducted at each 

testing location. 

f. A description of how the control equipment will be continuously 
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monitored during the test. 

g. The production rate (in terms of amperes per hour) at which each tank vill 

be operated during each test. (If any tank is to be operated at less than its 

rated capacity, the protocol must include a justification for the reduced 

operation). 

Ii. The name, address, and contact information (including e-mail address aid 

telephone number) of the contractor Diamond Hard chrome will be using 

to conduct the testing. 

i. Any potential modifications to the reference methods to be used. 

- j. Any other information regarding the units being tested, operational 

conditions under which the units will be tested, and testing methods to be 

used that.Diamond Hard Chrome or its chosen contractor feels is 

- necessary to allow EPA to adequately review and evaluate the stack 

testing protocol. 

Diamond 1-lard Chronic must continuously monitor and record pressure drop 

across the entire control system (mesh pads and scrubber systems) for each stack during the 

performance testing required by Paragraph 49. If alternative monitoring is proposed by Diamond 

Hard Gluoine in accordance with Paragraph 54, then the alternative monitoring must be 

conducted during the performance testing required by Paragraph 49 to establish appropriate 

parametric monitoring to assure ongoing compliance with all applicable limits. 

Diamond Hard Obrorue must submit a final report of the performance test results 

to EPA no later than 60 days after completing the testing requircd in Paragraph 49. This final 

report must include all results obtained during the testing even if some tests were stopped part 
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way through due to unforeseen errors or upset conditions. The final report must also include, at 

a minimum, the following infomiation: - 

A1i1 measured results of total chromium emissions in milligrams of total 

chromium per dry standard cubic meter. 

All measured pressure drop readings required by Paragraph 51 for each 

stack as measured during the stack testing. This must include both the 

average value recorded during eacb testing run across each stack system. 

and a copy of the actual data sheet where individual readings are 

recorded during testing. 

A stack sjxcific evaluation of the pressure drop readings obtained during 

testing to identit' and establish a range of pressure drop across which the 

stack testing shows continuous compliance with the applicable emission 

limits. This pressure drop range will be used to evaluate and determine 

ongoing'compliance with applicable emission limits at all times, including 

periods of process unit start up, shut down, and malfUnction. Failure to 

maintain pressure drop within the established range will be considered a 

failure to maintain continuous complIance with applicable eniissioa limits. 

Actual production rates achieved at each tank (in amperes per hour), and 

at each control system (gas and liquid flow rates), during the test. 

The moisture content, temperature, and flow rate of the gases being 

emitted from the stack being tested, including the raw field data. 

Calibration procedures and resuLts of calibrations performed on all testing 

equipment, including Pitot tube, nozzle, meter box, thermometer, and 
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barometer. 

The name, affihiation and contact infoimation for all representatives of the 

testini firm and any regulatory agencies that withessed or participated in 

the test. 

A description of all maintenance performed on any tank or controt system 

tested from the effective date of this Order until stack testing is completed. 

This thust include major cleaning operations, parts or equipment 

replacement, repairs made, and modifications of functional cçmponents of 

- either the process or control equipment madà within this time flame. 

An identification, discussion, and explanation of any errors encountered 

during the testing (both rear and apparent) and the causes of such errors. 

Raw field data which may include additional operational conditions 

monitored, readings obtained during testing, and raw data gathered by the 

contractor as part of the stack testing, 

Monitoring: 

Diamond Hard Chrome must install, calibrate, maintain, and continuously 

operate a parametric monitoring systeni capable of continuously monitoring and recording 

pressure drop across the entire cQntrol system (mesh pads and scrubber) on each of the three 

control device systems no later than 60 days after the effective date of this Order. Each 

parametric monitoring system must be capable of continuously measuring and recording pressure 

drop across the entire control system at least once every 15 minutes. 

In lieu of the continuous monitoring required in paragraph 53 Diamond Hard 

Chrome may develop and propose an alternative parametric monitoring program for pressure 
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drop winch utilizes its existing pressure drop monitors. Any alternative parametric monitoring 

program must include monitoring more frequently than once daily as well as clear record 

keeping and reporting.requirements. The proposed alternative monitoring program must be 

submitted to EPA for review and approval prior to fUll implementation. Any approved 

alternative monitoring plan must be incorporated into Diamond Hard Chrome's permits as 

federally enforceable requirements. 

Diamond Hard Chrome must install, cet-ti', maintain, and continuously operate a 

parametric monitoring system for ampere-hour usage on each of the seven open top hard 

chromium electroplating tanks no later than 60 days after the effective date of this order. Each 

parametric monitoring system nihst be capable of continuously measuring and recording the 

actual nmpere-hour usage of each tank (in ampere-hours) at least once every 15 minutes. 

In lieu of the continuous monitoring required in Paragraph 55 Diamond Hard 

Chrome may develop and propose an alternative parametric monitoring program which utilizes 

its exisling systems capable of measuring ampere-hour usage or other methods which can clearly 

document actual ampere-hour usage over a rolling 12-month period. Any alternative parametric 

monitoring program for ampere-hour usage must include a method that allows direetcalculation 

of a 12-month rolling average usage rate as well as clear record keeping and reporting 

requirements. The proposed alternative monitoring program must be submitted to EPA for 

review and approval prior to full implementation. Any approved alternative monitoring plan 

must be incorporated into Diamond Hard Chrome's permits as federally enforceable 

requirements. - 

Rcord Keeping and Reporting: 

Diamond Hard Chrome must maintain all applicable records as required by 
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40 C.F.R. § 63.l0(b)(1-2) and (c as velI as 40 C.F.R. Part 53, Subpart N. 

Diamondl-lard Chrome must maintain records of pressure drop across each of the 

three control device systems (mesh pads and scrubbers) in written or electronic format beginning 

no later than 60 days after the effective date of this Order. These records must be obtained at 

least once every 15 minutes and summarized on an hourly basis for alt hours (or partial hours) 

each control device system is operating if Diamond Hard Chrome elects to.comply with the 

continuous monitoring requirements of Paragraph 53. Record keeping under a proposed and 

approved alternatjve monitoring program for pressure drop under Paragraph 54 must be 

maintained in written or electronic format, readily available for review, and provide all 

information necessary to evaluate and assure ongoing compliance with applicable limits. 

Diamond Hard Chrome must maintain records of the periods of time each of the 

seven open top hard chromium electroplating tanks are operated. These records must be 

obtained daily for each of the seven open top hard chromium electroplating tanks, 

Diamond Hard Chrome nmst maintain records of the actual ampere-hour usage 

for each of the seven open top hard chromium electroplating tanks during operation in written or 

electronic format beginning no later than 60 days after the effective date of this Order. These 

records must be obtained at least once every 15 minutes and summarized on a daily basis for all 

hours (or partial hours) each of the seven open top hard chromium electroplating tanks is 

operating if Diamond Hard Chrome elects to comply with the continuous monitoring 

requirements of Paragraph 55. Record keeping under a proposed and approved alternative 

monitoring program for ampere-hour usage under Paragraph 56 must be maintained in written or 

electronic format, readily a'ailable for review, and provide all information necessary to evaluate 

and assure ongoing compliance with applicable limits. 
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I, 

All records required by this Order must be maintained in .a reviewable form for a 
rnininiuin of five years. The most recent two years of records must be maintained on site and 

readiy available for review upon request. - 

Diamond Hard Chrome must submit quarterly reports to EPA for review and 

evaluation of compliance wali this Order and 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart N. The quarterly 

reports must include, at a minimum, applicable information required by 40 C.RR. § 63.10(d) and 

(e), 40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart N, and this Order. 

Diamond Hard Chrome must submit quarterly reports which ideiitifS' each hour 

(or partial hour) when the pressure drop, as monitored in accordance with Paraaph 53 or 54, 

falls outsid the pressure drop range tstablished in accordance with Paragraph 52(e) of this 

Order, This report must include any period when one or more tanks associated with the 

respective control device system is operating, including periods of process unit start up, shut 

down, and malfunction. This report must include, at a minimum, the following information: 

The date Of each period when the pressure drop falls outside the 

established pressure drop range. 

The time (beginnhcg and end time) of each period when the pressure drop 

falls outside the established pressure drop range. 

The actual pressure drop measured each period when the pressure drop 

falls outside the established pressure drop range. 

d.- The cause of each period when the pressure drop falls outside the 

established pressure drop range. 

e. The corrective action(s) taken or preventative measure(s) adopted to 

prevent the pressure drop from falling outside the established pressure 



drop range in the Mute. 

Diamond Hard Chrome must submit quarterly reports which identifythe total 

hours of operation and the total actual ampere-hour usage of each of the seven open top hard 

chromium electroplating tanks, as monitored in accordance with Paragraph 55 or 56. This 

report must summarize the information on a monthly basis for the first four quarterly 

reports (the first 12 months of operating the parametric monitoring systems required by 

Paragraph 55 or 56). Each quarterly report thereafter must summarize the total hours of 

operation mid the actua' ampere-hour usage of each electroplating tank on a monthly and 

12-nionth rolling average basis. 

Diamond Hard Chrome may submit a single quarterly report for each reporting 

quarter which covers all the requirements in Paragraphs 57-64 of this Order. 

The time frame covered by the uarter1 reports is January - March, April - June, 

July - September, and October.- December of the respective calendar year. The first quarterly 

report will be for October-December, 2014 and due, in accordance with Paragraph 67, by 

January 30, 2015. 

Diamond Hard Chrome must submit each quarterly report. no later than 30 days 

after the end of the respective reporting quarter. (January 3Øth, April 301h, July 30th and October 

Permit Revisions: 

Diamond Hard Chrome must apply for revisions to its existing installation and 

operating permits no later than 60 days after the effective date of this Order. The revisions must 

incorporate the requirements of this Order as federally eaf'orbeable terms and conditions, as 

explained in Paragraphs 69-72 below. 
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Diamond Hard Chronic must apply for revisions to its existing installation and 

operating permits to incorporate its election to take operational limitations iii accordance with 

Paragraph 48. The operational limitations must be established on a per unit basis (per open top 

hard chromium electroplating tank) as federally enforceable limitations. The federally 

enforceable limitations must assure the ewnulativé total rectifier capacity of each tank is 

continuously maintained below the operational limitations on a 12-month rolling average basis 

(determined monthly). 

Diamond Hard Chrome must apply for revisions to its existing installation and 

operating permits to incorporate the pressure drop range, established during performance testing, 

which assures continuous compliance with applicable limits. The pressure drop ranges 

across the entire control system (mesh pads and scrubber) must be established on a per unit basis 

S a federally enforceable limit. The established pressure drop ranges will be used to determine 

compliance with applicable emission limits. Failure to maintain pressure drop within the 

established ranges will be considered failure lo comply with applicable emission limits. 

71. Qiamónd I-lard Chrome must apply for revisions to its existing installation and 

operating permits to incorporate the monitoring requirements of Paragraphs 53 through 56 of 

this Order. 

72. Diamond Hard Chrome must apply for revisions to its existing installation and 

operating permits to incorporate the recordkeeping and reporting requirements of Paragraphs 57 

through 67 of this Order. 
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Diamond Hard Chrome must send all reports required by this Older to: 

Attention: Compliance Tracker (AE-17J) 
Air Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
77 W. Jackson Boulevard 
Chicago, Illinois 60604 

General Provisions 

This Order does not affect Diamond Hard Chrome's responsibility to comply with 

other federal, state, and local laws. 

This Order does not restrict EPA's authority to enforce the Ohio State 

Implementation Plan, Section ill or 112 of the CAA, orany other section of the CAA. 

Notbingin this Order limits the EPA's authority to seek appropriate relief, 

including penalties, under Section 113 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413, for Diamond Hard 

Chrome's violation of 40 C.F.RPart-63, Subpart N. 

Failure to comply with this Order may subject Diamond Hard Chrome to penalties 

of up to $37,500 per day for eich violation tinder Section 113 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413, and 

40 C.F.R. Part [9. 

The terms of this Order are binding on Diamond Hard Chrome, its assignees, and 

successors. Diamond Hard Chrome must give notice of this Order to any successors in interest 

prior to transferring ownership and must simultaneously verify to EPA, at the above address, that 

it has given the notice. 

Diamond Hard Chrome may assert a claim of business confidentiality under 

40 C.F.R. Part 2, Subpart B, for any portion of the information it submits to EPA. Information 

subject to a business confidentiality claim is available to the public only to the exteflt allowed by 
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40 C.F.R. Part 2, Subpart B. If Diamond Hard Chrome fails to assert a business confidentiality 

claim, EPA may make all submitted infoimation available, without further notice, to any member 

of the public who requests it. Emission data provided under this Order is not entitled to 

confidential treatment under 40 C.P.R. Part 2, Subpart B. "Emission data' is defined at 

40 C.P.R. § 2.301. 

80.. This order is not subject to the Paperwork Reduction Act, 44 U.S.C. 3501 et seq., 

because it seeks collçction of information by an agency from specific individuals or entities as 

part of an administrative action or investigation. To.aid incur electronic recordkeeping efforts, 

please furnish an electronic copy on physical media such as compact disk, flash drive, or other 

similar itcni. If it is not possible to submit the information electronically, submit the response to 

tins orderwithout staples; paper clips and binder clips, however, three ring binders are 

acceptable. 

EPA may use any information submitted under this Order in an administrative, 

civil judicial, or criminal action. 

Diamond Hard Chrome agrees to the terms 9f this Order. 

Diamond Hard Chrom neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations 

set forth above in this Order. 

Diamond Hard Chrome must achieve compliance with all requirements of this 

Order no later than one year after the effective date of this Order. - 

This Order will terminate one year after the effective date of this Order or at an 

earlier date if Diamond Hard Chrome requests EPA to terminate this Order after Diamond 

Hard Chrome achieves compliance with all requirements of this Order. To request termination 

of the Order, Diamond Hard Chrome must submit to EPA a"final notification" which describes 
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Diamond Hard Chrome's compliance actions and basis for believing that such actions have met 

the requirements of this Order. The notification will be reviewed by EPA and, if EPA agrees 

with Diamond Hard Chrome's assessment, the Order will be terminated through a letter from 

EPA to Diamond Hard Chrome. 

86. This order is effective on the date of signature by the Director of the Air and 

Radiation Division. 

/0 -,p -iV 
Date olin It. Tankovich, President 

Diamond I-lard Chrome Company, Inc. 

OeorgTir erni. r 
Dirp6f or ____ 
Air'a4-Ra;. .tjon' on 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING 

I, Loretta Shaffer, certify that I sent the Administrative Consent Order, EPA-5- 14-11 3(a)-OH-02, 
by certified mail, return receipt requested, to: 

John R. Tankovich, 
President 
Diamond Hard Chrome 
Company, Inc. 
6110 Grand Avenue 
Cleveland, Ohio 44104 

I also certify that I sent a copy of the Administrative Consent Order, EPA-5-14-1 13(a)-OH-02, 
by first-class mail to: 

Robert Casarona 
Roetzel & Andress 
1375 B. Ninth Street 
One Cleveland Center 
Ninth Floor 
Cleveland, OH 44114 

George Baker 
Department of Public Health 
Division of Air Quality 
75 Brieview P1a72, 2nd Floor 
Cleveland, Ohio 44114 

Robert Hodanbosi 
Ohio Environmental 
Protection Agency 
50 West Town Street 
Suite 700 
P.O. Box 1049 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

On the i3 day of No\Jmb2 2014. 



Loretla Shaffe 
Program Technician 
AECAB, PAS 

CERTIFIEDMAILRECEIPTNUMBER: 
1jg6 ô000 z,&9 -3:i3 


